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DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 
Planning Division 

 
m e m o r a n d u m 

 
 
 
TO: The Urbana Plan Commission  
 
FROM: Christopher Marx, AICP – Planner I 
 
DATE: September 29, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Plan Case 2319-S-17 - Request for waiver of Sections 21-42.B.1.b and 21-42.B.5.b 

of the Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code regarding stormwater 
management plan requirements for Lot 2 in Carter’s First Subdivision (407 N. 
Maple Street) 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Introduction  
 
The applicant, MBR Management Corporation, is requesting a waiver from the stormwater 
management plan requirements of the Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code (Section 21-
42) for the property at 407 North Maple Street, also known as Lot 2 of the Carter’s First Subdivision. 
The City’s Code requires new non-residential developments with increases in impervious surfaces of 
a certain size to submit a stormwater management plant that details how the property will facilitate 
drainage. Because of the site’s size and proximity to the Boneyard Creek, the applicants are requesting 
a waiver from the stormwater management plan requirement.  
 

Background 

 
The Urbana City Council approved the final subdivision plat for the Carter’s First Subdivision in 
1992 Plan Case 1490-S-92. The site has since remained vacant, except to provide access and 
overflow parking for the adjacent Carter’s Furniture store (See Exhibit A). MBR Management 
Corporation plans to purchase Lot 2 in Carter's First Subdivision to construct a 3,312 square foot 
strip center at 407 North Maple Street. Lot 2 is a 0.75 acre parcel at the corner of East University 
Avenue and North Maple Street and lies just south and adjacent to Boneyard Creek (See Exhibit B). 
 
The applicant has submitted a petition for a waiver from the storm water management requirements 
of the City’s Subdivision Code. Section 21-42.B.1.b of the Code requires that a stormwater 
management plan be submitted for all non-residential developments over two acres in area or with 
site impervious area greater than fifty (50) percent of the area of development. The proposed 
development at 407 North Maple Street will exceed the fifty percent impervious area requirement. 
Section 21-42.B.5.b of the Code specifies that for a required storm water management plan, the storm 
water runoff release rate after development for a 50-year storm event shall not exceed the five-year 
storm release rate of the site prior to development. A waiver for complying with Section 21-42-B.1.b 
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would eliminate the requirement to comply with Section 21-42.B.5.b. 
 

Discussion 
 
According to Section 21-7 of the Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code, the petitioner 
must justify the granting of a waiver from strict compliance with the Code by showing that the waiver 
meets certain criteria.  These criteria are identified and discussed below: 
 

1. There are conditions of topography or other site specific reasons that make the application of any particular 
requirement of the land development code unnecessary or, in some cases perhaps, even useless; 
 

The conditions of the topography make the application of particular requirements of the land 
development code unnecessary and perhaps useless. The site is located adjacent to the Boneyard 
Creek which is a major drainage way in Urbana. 
 
Large drainage ways, such as Boneyard Creek, have a much longer "time of concentration" than a 
smaller development site. Time of concentration is the time needed for water to flow from the 
most remote point in a watershed to the outlet. The peak flow of a watershed corresponds with 
the time of concentration. A large creek, such as Boneyard Creek, will not reach peak flow for 
hours after a rainfall event, while a small development site will reach peak flow in as little as five  
minutes. 
 
Stormwater detention, by definition, detains stormwater drainage and releases that drainage over 
a longer period of time.  Allowing stormwater from the site to quickly reach the Boneyard Creek, 
instead of capturing it on site in a detention basin and discharging it at reduced rate over time, 
would reduce the peak flow rate in the Boneyard Creek before the peak flows from upstream areas 
occur. 
   
2. The granting of the requested waiver would not harm other nearby properties; 

 
The granting of the waiver to the Subdivision and Land Development Code would not have a 
negative impact on nearby properties.  The applicant states that waiving the stormwater detention 
requirements will reduce the impact of the peak flow rate from the development to the Boneyard 
Creek benefiting the adjacent properties. The nearby properties are less likely to have a higher 
peak flow rate and become flooded more quickly.   

 
 3. The waiver would not negatively impact the public health, safety and welfare, including the objectives and goals 

set forth in the comprehensive plan. 
 
 The granting of the requested waiver would not cause any harm to the public health, safety and 

welfare of the community and would not be contrary to the objectives and goals set forth in the 
Comprehensive Plan.  Failure to grant the waiver and requiring detention could negatively impact 
the public welfare because it could increase peak flows from the site to coincide with peak flows 
from the Boneyard Creek. 

 
The applicants state that alternatively allowing them to release stormwater directly into the Boneyard 
Creek in a quick manner would be better for the Creek than a slow-releasing detention on the property. 
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They state that a direct release would keep the peak flow of the Boneyard from increasing. The City 
Engineer supports  the proposed waiver with the requirement that the drainage system for the site is 
designed to convey the fifty-year design storm directly to the Boneyard Creek. 

 
Summary of Findings 

 
1. The Urbana City Council adopted Ordinance No. 9293-90 on March 15, 1993, approving the final 

subdivision plat for Carter’s First Subdivision.  
 

2. The applicant has submitted a waiver request from the stormwater management plan requirements 
of the Urbana Subdivision and Land Development Code (Sections 21-42.B.1.b and 21-42.B.5.b) 
for Lot 2. 
 

3. The proposed waiver would permit the development to not submit a stormwater management 
plan and directly connect its drainage to the Boneyard Creek.  

 
4. The requested waiver is necessary because delaying storm water release from the site could 

produce higher peak flows in the Boneyard Creek. 
 

5. The requested waiver will not be harmful to other properties and would not negatively impact the 
public health, safety and welfare of the community, nor impede the attainment of goals and 
objectives contained in the Comprehensive Plan.   

 
6. The City Engineer supports the proposed waiver with the condition that the drainage system for 

the site is designed to convey the fifty-year design storm directly to the Boneyard Creek.  
 
 

Options 
 
The Urbana Plan Commission has the following options regarding Plan Case Plan Case 2319-S-17: 
 

a. Forward the case to City Council with a recommendation for approval of the requested waiver 
of the stormwater management plan requirements of the Urbana Subdivision and Land 
Development Code; or 
 

b. Forward the case to City Council with a recommendation for denial of the requested waiver 
of the stormwater management plan requirements of the Urbana Subdivision and Land 
Development Code. 

 
 

Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends that the Urbana Plan Commission forward this case to the City Council with a 
recommendation for approval of the requested waiver from the stormwater management plan 
requirements of Sections 21-42.B.1.b and 21-42.B.5.b of the Urbana Subdivision and Land 
Development Code with the following condition: 
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1. The storm drainage system for the site is designed to convey a fifty-year design storm 
directly to the Boneyard Creek. 

 
Attachments: Exhibit A: Location Map 
  Exhibit B: Application  
    

cc: MBR Management Corporation  
   

_________________________________________________________________ 
Prepared by Brad Bennett, Assistant City Engineer and Christohper Marx, Planner I 



Case:
Subject:
Location:
Petitioner:

Exhibit A: Location Map

Plan Case 2319-S-17
Request for Waiver of Subdivision Code 
407 North Maple Street
MBR Management Corporation
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